
AGENDA  
ELGIN GROUP POLICE SERVICES BOARD 

 
Wednesday, August 18, 2021 

2:00 p.m. 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Elgin County Detachment Boardroom 
42696 John Wise Line 
St. Thomas, Ontario 

Call to Order Chair Sally Martyn shall preside. 

Adoption of Minutes from May 19, 2021 Meeting (ATTACHED) 

Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and the General Nature Thereof 

Reports (ATTACHED) 

1) Trudy Kanellis (Board Member) – 2021 OAPSB Spring Conference Summary 

2) Julie Gonyou (Secretary/Administrator) – Board Compensation Review 

3) Detachment Commander’s Quarterly Report 

Correspondence (ATTACHED) 

1) OAPSB Zone 6 Notice of Meeting – September 28, 2021 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Other Items 

New Business 

Closed Session Items 

Adjournment 

Next Meeting : To be determined   



1 
 

Draft Minutes 
ELGIN GROUP POLICE SERVICES BOARD 

May 19, 2021 
 

 

  

The Elgin Group Police Services Board met electronically with the following in 
attendance: 

Sally Martyn, Chair 
Ida McCallum, Vice-Chair 
Dan Froese, Board Member
Trudy Kanellis, Provincial Member 
David Jenkins, Provincial Member 
Mike Butler, Acting Inspector 
Jeff McNorgan, Administrative Sergeant 
Lisa Liegler, Acting Staff Sergeant 

 

Julie Gonyou, Secretary/Administrator 
Carolyn Krahn, Recording Secretary 

Call to Order: 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

The Chair called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. 

Adoption of Minutes: 

Moved by: Dave Jenkins 
Seconded by: Trudy Kanellis 

Resolved that the minutes of the meeting held on February 24, 2021 be adopted. 

Recorded Vote 

Yes No 
Ida McCallum Yes  

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Dan Froese Yes 
Trudy Kanellis Yes 
David Jenkins Yes 
Councillor Martyn Yes 

5 0 
 

- Motion Carried. 

Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and the General Nature Thereof: 

None. 



2 
 

Reports: 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

1) OPP Contract Extension 
 

 

 

 

 

The Secretary/Administrator provided an update regarding a recent request from the 
Ontario Provincial Police (OPP) for an extension to the current contract. 

Moved by: Ida McCallum 
Seconded by: Dan Froese 

Resolved that the report from the Secretary-Administrator, dated May 12, 2021, be 
received and filed. 

Recorded Vote 

Yes No 
Ida McCallum Yes  

 
 
 
 

 

 

Dan Froese Yes 
Trudy Kanellis Yes 
David Jenkins Yes 
Councillor Martyn Yes 

5 0 

- Motion Carried. 

2) Elgin Group Police Services Board Composition 

The Secretary/Administrator provided an update regarding upcoming changes to 
OPP Boards that will soon be rolled-out across the province. 

Moved by: Ida McCallum 
Seconded by: Dave Jenkins 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Resolved that the report from the Secretary-Administrator, dated May 12, 2021, be 
received and filed.  

Recorded Vote 

Yes No 
Ida McCallum Yes 
Dan Froese Yes 
Trudy Kanellis Yes 
David Jenkins Yes 
Councillor Martyn Yes 

5 0 

- Motion Carried. 



3 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3) Board Communications Strategy 

The Secretary/Administrator presented a high-level Communications Strategy and 
solicited feedback from Board Members on ways to improve communications with 
Elgin Group member municipalities.  
 

 

 
 

 
 

Moved by: Dave Jenkins 
Seconded by: Trudy Kanellis 

Resolved that the report from the Secretary-Administrator, dated May 12, 2021, be 
received and filed. 

Recorded Vote 

Yes No 
Ida McCallum Yes  

 
 

Dan Froese Yes 
Trudy Kanellis Yes 
David Jenkins Yes  

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Councillor Martyn Yes 
5 0 

- Motion Carried. 

4) Board Compensation Review 

The Secretary/Administrator advised Board Members that a review of Board 
compensation would commence shortly. 

Moved by: Ida McCallum 
Seconded by: Dan Froese 

Resolved that the report from the Secretary-Administrator, dated May 12, 2021, be 
received and filed. 

Recorded Vote 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Yes No 
Ida McCallum Yes 
Dan Froese Yes 
Trudy Kanellis Yes 
David Jenkins Yes 
Councillor Martyn Yes 

5 0 

- Motion Carried. 



4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

5) Community Safety and Well-Being Planning Update 

The Legislative Services Coordinator provided an update on the Aylmer-Elgin-St. 
Thomas Community Safety and Well-Being (CSWB) Plan. After extensive 
consultation with local community organizations and the general public, Jennifer 
Kirkham, Mischevious Cat Productions, has completed a draft of the Plan. The 
Coordinating Committee is reviewing the draft, and the Plan will be presented to the 
Local Municipal Councils for approval in June. 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Moved by: Dave Jenkins 
Seconded by: Dan Froese 

Resolved that the report from the Legislative Services Coordinator, dated May 12, 
2021, be received and filed. 

Recorded Vote 

Yes No 
Ida McCallum Yes 
Dan Froese Yes 
Trudy Kanellis Yes 
David Jenkins Yes 
Councillor Martyn Yes 

5 0 

- Motion Carried. 

6) Detachment Commander’s Quarterly Report 

The Detachment Commander provided statistics on public complaints; crime 
abatement strategy; patrol hours; violent, property, and drug crimes; and collisions 
for the period of January to March 2021. As of March 31, there have been no fatal 
collisions in 2021. There has been a 30% decrease in personal injury collisions, and 
a 27% decrease in criminal assaults.  

The Administrative Sergeant provided an update on the newly formed Mobile Crisis 
Response Team (MCRT). The team is a partnership between Elgin County OPP, 
Aylmer Police and the Canadian Mental Health Association (CHMA) Elgin-
Middlesex. As a part of this team, a CHMA worker responds along with officers to 
mental health calls. 

The Staff Sergeant provided an update on half load season. Officers dedicated 9.5 
hours in patrols; seven (7) provincial offences notices were served; and multiple 
warnings were issued to offending drivers. 

Moved by: Trudy Kanellis 



5 
 

Seconded by: Dave Jenkins 
 

 

 
 

 

Resolved that the report from the Detachment Commander be received and filed. 

Recorded Vote 

Yes No 
Ida McCallum Yes 
Dan Froese Yes  

 
 
 

 

Trudy Kanellis Yes 
David Jenkins Yes 
Councillor Martyn Yes 

5 0 
 

- Motion Carried. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Correspondence: 

1) OAPSB Spring Conference & AGM: May 26-28 

The Police Services Board discussed the correspondence. The Chair confirmed that 
one (1) Board Member would attend the OAPSB Spring Conference & AGM on behalf 
of the Elgin Group and that the Board Member would report back at the next meeting. 

Other Items 

None. 

New Business:  

None. 

Next Meeting:  

A Doodle Poll will be circulated to determine the time of the next meeting. 

Adjournment: 
 

 

 

 
 

 

Moved by: David Jenkins 
Seconded by: Dan Froese 

Resolved that we do now adjourn at 2:47 p.m.  

Recorded Vote 

Yes No 
Ida McCallum Yes 



6 
 

Dan Froese Yes  
 
 
 

 

Trudy Kanellis Yes 
David Jenkins Yes 
Councillor Martyn Yes 

5 0 
 

- Motion Carried. 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________  ________________________________ 

Julie Gonyou,    
   Secretary/Administrator.   

  Sally Martyn, 
     Chair.   



 
1 

 

From: Trudy Kanellis, Board Member  
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

Date: May 30, 2021 

Subject: Ontario Association of Police Services Boards (OAPSB) Spring Conference 2021 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT the May 30th, 2021, report titled, Ontario Association of Police Services Boards 
(OAPSB) Spring Conference 2021, submitted by Trudy Kanellis, Board Member, be 
received and filed for information. 

INTRODUCTION: 

On behalf of the Elgin Group PSB, I attended the OAPSB Spring Conference from May 
26 to 28, 2021. The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of the conference 
sessions.  

DISCUSSION: 

Wednesday, May 26, 2021 

Bryan MacKillop, Chief Superintendent, Regional Commander Northwest Region, 
OPP, was our first speaker. He spoke about the importance of communication between 
board members and detachment commanders.   
 

 

  
 

Key points from his presentation: 
• Strategic planning process 
• Evaluation & Control 
• Strategy Implementation 
• Strategy Formulation 
• Environmental Scanning 
• Mission and Objectives  

The Board/Detachment Commander relationship is critical, and it should start before the 
Commander starts. Together, the Board and Detachment Commander must identify 
public safety issues that require attention, using an informed approach. There are many 
different considerations and impacting factors: legislation, policy, emerging trends, 

REPORT TO THE ELGIN GROUP POLICE SERVICES BOARD 



 
2 

capacity, and unforeseen issues. An important theme from this session was that it is 
better to be proactive than reactive. 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 
 
 

Fred Kaustinen, Executive Director, OAPSB spoke about Strategic Planning under 
CSPA 2019. 

Key points from his presentation: 
• Why Strategic Plan? 
• Defining the Police Board Job 
• Generic Board Governance 
• Police Board Governance 

o What impact are police making on the community? 
o What are the community’s needs, value & expectations? 
o Which way forward, results to be achieved, & limits to be adhered to 

• Impact Assessment 
• Strategic Plan components 
• Options for Strategic Planning 
• Triggers for Plan Review 

Thursday, May 27, 2021 

Sarah Caldwell, Director Strategic Policy, Research & Innovation, Ministry of 
SOLGEN provided an update on OPP detachment boards. The purpose of her 
presentation was to provide an overview of the legislative changes to the CSPA. The 
presentation was similar to the discussions held at the regional round tables in early 
2020, which Ida, Julie, and I attended. 

The presentation covered:   
• Implementation, remuneration, size/composition, criteria, costs  
• The ministry is working to bring the CSPA into force by early 2022. 
• Some key changes under the CSPA 

o Provision of Policing 
o OPP Governance 
o First Nations Policing 
o Accountability 
o Oversight and Discipline 
o Professionalism 

There will be training for board members and an updated code of conduct. Provincial 
appointees that are currently appointed will be wound down. They will need to be 
reappointed, but they may not have to go through the whole application again.   



 
3 

Vishal Dhir, Managing Director, Stef Schurman, Senior Regional Manager AXON 
Presentation 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Key points from the presentation:  
• Trust and Accountability  
• Confidence in the police 
• Perceptions vs reality – perception of public is different from reality. 
• Data shows the approval and confidence of the police remains high. 
• Body worn cameras – how technology can be used to support transparency. 

Sarah Caldwell, Director Strategic Policy, Research & Innovation, Ministry of 
SOLGEN   
Michelina Longo, Director External Relations Branch, Ministry of SOLGEN 

Key points from the presentation: 
• Municipal Board Regulations 
• Board members code of conduct: The existing one covers a broad range of 

principle and can be hard to interpret, leaving a lot of variation between boards. 
The new code of conduct will strengthen civilian governance by clarifying the 
behaviors that are expected and prohibited of individual board members. 

• Special Constables Framework: The police service board or the OPP will be able 
to promote a special constable, but they will need to be authorized by the 
Solicitor General.  

• Adequate and Effective Policing Standards: Requirements under the CSPA, 
Crime Prevention, Law Enforcement, Maintaining the Public Peace, Emergency 
Response, Assistance to Victims of Crime, any other prescribed policing function. 

• Section 14 Agreements: Police service boards are legally required to deliver 
policing functions using their own members except to the extent the regulations 
allow otherwise. 

• Overview: Some things will look similar under the police services act and some 
will look different. The following items will be included: the discipline process, 
adjudication process, expanded powers of OPAC, changes around code of 
conduct, police officer code of conduct, the advisor code of conduct, and special 
constables code of conduct. The chiefs of police are the leaders. The regulations 
that are being proposed are about improving the “muscle” of the boards.  

Friday, May 28, 2021 

Sean Sparling, President ISN, Canada, (Retired Deputy Chief)  
Paul Cook, Business Development, Investigative Solutions Network Inc.  

Sean Sparling and Paul Cook provided an overview of ISN’s services, which were 
designed to help policing become more effective and efficient. Their mantra is “Best 
people, Best methods, Best results.” They help with investigations, risk management, 
screening, training, and security.  



 
4 

In the last several years they have provided 18 police services and 2 police services 
boards with investigations, surveillance, support, and background screening. The 2 
boards they helped hire and do background screening for new chiefs. 
 

 

Dr. Robyne Hanley-Dafoe, Keynote Address, Resiliency & Wellness in Times of 
Uncertainty 

Key points from the presentation 
• What makes people resilient? Are they tougher, stronger or have more work 

ethics? 
• Five (5) Core Traits of Resilience: Belonging, Perspective, Acceptance, Hope, 

and Humour 
• Resilience can be taught.  
• These five variables work together, these traits can be protected and looked 

after. 
• Why are some people more resilient than others? How come somedays you feel 

confident, then the next day not so much? 
• The number one barrier is STRESS. Our bodies create cortisol when we are 

stressed. When you have to much cortisol, our bodies go into burnout. 
• Three (3) quick grab and go practices if you feel you have to much cortisol  

o Get into motion. Get outside for 20 minutes 
o Try red blotchy crying. It is the quickest way to get it out of our face.  
o Eat carbohydrates: crackers, cookies, white bread, or beer. 

• Two (2) Behaviour red flags: 
o Self-neglect – We just stop trying to feel better. We accept that there is no 

point. 
o Self-entitlement – It is a trap. We do good work for everyone else. When 

we finally get a break, we feel entitled (e.g. binge watching TV, second 
bottle of wine). 

o This is dangerous because it can be a slippery slope. You should 
celebrate, but be careful not to self-sabotage. 

• The leading cause of burnouts is that we do not take a break. 
• When most people get into hot water, they don’t respond. They react, “Fight, 

Flight, Freeze, Fawning” 
• Take time in your day to “Breathe.” She talked about “Birthday Cake Breathing” 
• Life with work balance 
• Mono-tasking vs. multi-tasking,   
• Transitions – activating & resting. It is important that we learn how to shift gears.  
• Create transitions (e.g. first responders could leave their uniform at work). 
• 20 – 20 – 20  

o Every 20 minutes look away from your computer for 20 seconds. Look 20 
feet in the distance. This gives your brain a chance to stop squinting.  

• Have an end point. Sign off knowing that you did the best you can and that your 
work is over. 



 
5 

• Eight (8) Wellness Factors 
o Physical, intellectual, emotional, social, environmental, spiritual, financial, 

occupational. Do whatever motivates you to live well.  
• As humans we are hardwired to adapt to what we need to do to survive and 

thrive. It is in our biology to survive. We don’t like change or to be different. We 
figure things out. 

 

 

 

 

Devon Clunis, Inspector General, Inspectorate of Policing, Ministry of the 
Solicitor General 
Ken Weatherill, Deputy Inspector General, Inspectorate of Policing, Ministry of the 
Solicitor General 

Key points from the presentation: 
• Changing the conversation on policing in Ontario: Promoting excellence, equity & 

public confidence 
• Mission – to work respectfully and professionally to support those responsible for 

the delivery of policing in Ontario to meet legislative obligations to help transform 
policing and the relationship between the police and broader community.  

• Policing is one of the most important tools in society to advance cultural change. 
• Boards and chiefs have to be creative in order to deliver the challenges expected 

of them. The challenges are about relationships with our communities. We must 
be connected with the community even when the chief leaves the position. 

• It is all about what “we” can do together. 
• Lead by example – trust, respect, etc. 
• Priorities to keep us moving – connect with stakeholders and community partners 

to listen to what everyone has to say. 
• Inspectorate functional pillars 

o Advisory – This is the most important pillar within the inspectorate.  
o Inspections – The most recent was done in 2018. They will still be doing 

annual inspections.  
o Investigations – If there are any allegations of misconduct, from a board 

member or chief, or the inability to provide adequate policing. The 
investigations should be completed with minimal disruption. 

o Analytics – Analytical branch that will be proactive and transparent to the 
community. 

Fred Kaustinen, Executive Director – OAPSB On-Line Learning Portal 

Key points from the presentation: 
• This is an exciting time for policing in Ontario. It is not enough just to know what 

the job is.  
• Learn by getting coached and practicing. Board members need training on how 

to govern the police. 



 
6 

• The new learning program is designed for learning retention and optional 
learning. It is accredited by college and readily accessible for reasonable 
developmental costs.  It is cost effectively administered through OAPSB.  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Patrick Weaver, Ontario Association Police Services Boards – Closing Remarks 

Be aware of the tsunami of information and misinformation in the news feeds. Do not 
drown in the waters. Do your homework, listen to the community, report back to your 
inspector because change is upon us. 

CONCLUSION: 

All the presentations were made available on the OAPSB website after the conference. 

I would like to thank the board for allowing me to attend this conference.  Listening to 
some of the questions from other boards assured me that we have a very well-run 
board.   

All of which is Respectfully Submitted 

Trudy Kanellis 
Board Member 



 

  

 

1 

REPORT TO ELGIN GROUP POLICE 
SERVICES BOARD 
FROM:   Julie Gonyou, Secretary-Administrator 

  Carolyn Krahn, Recording Secretary 

DATE:  August 12, 2021 

          SUBJECT: Board Compensation Review    

 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

THAT the report from the Secretary-Administrator, dated August 12, 2021, be received and 
filed; 

AND THAT member compensation be reviewed and/or adjusted as part of the 2022 Budget.   

INTRODUCTION:  

The purpose of this report is to present the results of the Elgin Group PSB member 
compensation review.  

The Elgin Group Police Services Board (PSB) Chair and Vice Chair delivered presentations 
regarding Board composition at the six (6) Elgin Group member municipalities.  A few members 
of Council expressed an interest in Board compensation, noting that compensation seemed 
high.   

A formal resolution was received from the Township of Malahide which indicated: 

 THAT the Malahide Township Council does hereby support maintaining the current 
composition of the Elgin Group Police Services Board;  

AND THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to all members of the Elgin Group Police 
Services Board. 

The letter from the Township of Malahide (attached) further requested: 

THAT consideration be given to a review of the PSB Operating Budget in an effort to 
further reduce costs to the municipal partners. 



 

  

 

2 

Chair Martyn consented to a review of the Elgin Group PSB member compensation.  In support 
of this review, the Secretary-Administrator gathered information from the Ontario Association of 
Police Services Board Zone 6 members and reviewed relevant legislation. 

DISCUSSION:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Legislation: 

According to provincial legislation, provincially appointed board members must be paid at least 
$300 per year.  O. Reg. 268/10 under the Police Services Act, R.S.O. 199, c. P. 15 states: 

A municipality shall pay to each board member who is appointed by the Lieutenant 
Governor in Council or the Solicitor General, 

i. (a) in a municipality having a population exceeding 500,000 according to the last 
revised assessment roll, not less than $1,000 a year; 

ii. (b) in a municipality having a population exceeding 100,000 and not exceeding 
500,000 according to the last revised assessment roll, not less than $500 a year; 

iii. (c) in a municipality having a population exceeding 10,000 and not exceeding 
100,000 according to the last revised assessment roll, not less than $300 a 
year; 

iv. (d) in a municipality whose population does not exceed 10,000 according to the 
last revised assessment roll, not less than $100 a year.  O. Reg. 268/10, s. 5. 

Board Remuneration Comparison:  

On July 6, 2021, a survey was sent to Ontario Association of Police Services Board (OAPSB) 
Zone 6 members in order to compare Elgin Group Board remuneration with other Zone 6 
Boards. We received six (6) responses. A comparison is presented below, and the full results of 
the survey are attached to this report. 

 Elgin  Lakeshore Chatham-
Kent 

Kingsville Tecumseh Thames 
Centre 

LaSalle 

Chair $2,000/year $1,375/year $7,200/year $2,094/year $3,350/year $157/meeting 
(There are 4 
meetings 
scheduled for 
2021.) 

$2,000/year 
(Council) 
$3,000/year 
(non-
Council) 

Member $1,500/year $1,375/year $6,000/year 
(Vice-
Chair) 
$4,800/year 
(Member) 

$2,094/year $2,770/year $157/meeting $2,400/year 



 

  

 

3 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Elgin Group Police Services Board Composition:  

In March of 2021, Elgin’s Heads of Councils received an update from the Office of the Solicitor 
General about the new OPP detachment boards under the Community Safety and Policing Act, 
2019 (CSPA).  The update included information about a new framework for Police Services Boards. 
The framework outlined minimum requirements for board composition and included flexibility for 
municipalities to create a board that reflects their communities and local needs. Municipalities were 
asked to work together to determine the composition of their boards and to submit a proposal to the 
Ministry by Monday, June 7, 2021. 

The Secretary-Administrator submitted one application on behalf of member municipalities. Once 
the Elgin Group PSB submission is approved, the current Board will dissolve and a new Board, 
under the Community Safety and Policing Act (CSPA) will have to be established. This will involve, at 
minimum, reappointments and new procedural by-law(s). 

CONCLUSION: 

Once the new Police Services Board is established and member composition for the Board is 
determined, member compensation can be reviewed and/or adjusted as part of the 2022 Budget. 

This report along with the results of the Zone 6 Compensation Survey will be shared with the 
member municipalities for their review. 

All of which is Respectfully Submitted  

Julie Gonyou 

Secretary-Administrator 

CAO|Clerk, County of Elgin   

Carolyn Krahn 

Recording Secretary 

Legislative Services Coordinator, County of Elgin 



     

  

      
   

     

     

    

  

      

     

Zone 6 PSB Board Costs Study 

Q1 Please tell us which Board you represent: 
Answered: 6 Skipped: 0 

# RESPONSES DATE 

1 Lakeshore Police services Board 7/13/2021 12:57 PM 

2 CHATHAM-KENT POLICE SERVICES BOARD 7/10/2021 2:12 PM 

3 Town of Kingsville 7/9/2021 9:43 AM 

4 Tecumseh 7/6/2021 3:28 PM 

5 Thames Centre Police Services board 7/6/2021 3:23 PM 

6 LaSalle Police Services Board 7/6/2021 2:31 PM 

1 / 6 



     

  

       
 

   

 

 

500,000 + 

>10,000 

Zone 6 PSB Board Costs Study 

Q2 What is the population of the municipality/municipalities served by your 
police services board? 

Answered: 6 Skipped: 0 

100,000-500,000 

10,000-100,000 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 

ANSWER CHOICES 

500,000 + 

100,000-500,000 

10,000-100,000 

>10,000 

TOTAL 

RESPONSES 

0.00% 

0.00% 

100.00% 

0.00% 

0 

0 

6 

0 

6 

2 / 6 



     

  

      
   

  

            

  

  

  

  

Zone 6 PSB Board Costs Study 

Q3 How many members are on your Police Services Board? 

Answered: 6 Skipped: 0 

# RESPONSES DATE 

1 5 7/13/2021 12:57 PM 

2 Five (5)-2 Members of Council-2 Provincial Appointees -1 Council Public Appointment 7/10/2021 2:12 PM 

3 5 7/9/2021 9:43 AM 

4 5 7/6/2021 3:28 PM 

5 5 7/6/2021 3:23 PM 

6 5 7/6/2021 2:31 PM 

3 / 6 



     

  

           
   

   

  

  

  

         

         

Zone 6 PSB Board Costs Study 

Q4 What is the annual remuneration for the Chair of your PSB Board? 

Answered: 6 Skipped: 0 

# RESPONSES DATE 

1 1375.00 approximately 7/13/2021 12:57 PM 

2 $600.00/month 7/10/2021 2:12 PM 

3 $2,094.24 7/9/2021 9:43 AM 

4 $3,350 7/6/2021 3:28 PM 

5 157 per meeting + max $3000/yr for conferences/seminars/training 7/6/2021 3:23 PM 

6 $2,000 if Council member, $3,000 if non-Council member 7/6/2021 2:31 PM 

4 / 6 



     

  

         

   

   

        

   

  

  

  

Zone 6 PSB Board Costs Study 

Q5 What is the annual remuneration for other members of your PSB 
Board? 

Answered: 6 Skipped: 0 

# RESPONSES DATE 

1 1375.00 approximately 7/13/2021 12:57 PM 

2 Vice-Chair:$500.00/month , Board Members: $400.00/month, Secretary $550.00/month 7/10/2021 2:12 PM 

3 $2,094.24 each 7/9/2021 9:43 AM 

4 $2,770 7/6/2021 3:28 PM 

5 same 7/6/2021 3:23 PM 

6 $2,400 7/6/2021 2:31 PM 

5 / 6 



     

  

          
   

 

Zone 6 PSB Board Costs Study 

Q6 Would you like us to share the results of the survey with you? 

Answered: 6 Skipped: 0 

Yes 

No 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 

ANSWER CHOICES 

Yes 

No 

TOTAL 

RESPONSES 

100.00% 

0.00% 

6 

0 

6 

6 / 6 



Police Services Board Report for The Elgin Group Police Services Group
2021/Apr to 2021/Jun

Public Complaints
Policy 0
Service 0
Conduct 0

Date information collected from Professional Standards Bureau Commander Reports:    2021-08-16
Data Source
Ontario
Provincial
Police,
Professional
Standards
Bureau
Commander
Reports

- Includes all public policy, service and conduct complaints submitted to the Office of the Independent Police Review Director 
(OIPRD)

Secondary Employment

Intelligence Led Policing - Crime Abatement Strategy
Number of Offenders in Program 10
Number of Offenders Charged 3
Number of Charges Laid 19
Number of Checks Performed 4

Date information was collected from Records Management System:   2021-08-08

Daily Activity Reporting Patrol Hours
Total Hours 2021/Apr to 2021/Jun
Number of Cruiser Patrol Hours 731.25
Number of Motorcycle Patrol Hours 35.75
Number of Marine Patrol Hours 185.50
Number of ATV Patrol Hours 83.00
Number of Snowmobile Patrol Hours 0.00
Number of Bicycle Patrol Hours 7.00
Number of Foot Patrol Hours 10.25
Number of School Patrol Hours 0.50

Data source (Daily Activity Reporting System) date:   2021/08/14

Detachment: 6P - ELGIN COUNTY
Location code(s): 6P00 - ELGIN COUNTY, 6P01 - ELGIN COUNTY (Elgin Group (MI)), 6P10 - DUTTON

Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
Butler, Michael Aug 16, 2021 3:50:28 PM

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300



Police Services Board Report for The Elgin Group Police Services Board
2021/Apr to 2021/Jun 

Number of Targeted 
Media Releases: 

Numerous Media engagements related to Opening of Ontario, and EMCPA education and police 
response. 

Crime and Traffic 
Campaigns/Initiatives: 

Easter Long Weekend Seatbelt Campaign - 10 Seatbelt charges, Canada Road Safety Week 
(Transport Safety) - 60 charges, Safe Boating Week - 26 Vessel Inspections, 2 charges. 

Public Education 
Campaigns: 

Numerous Media engagements related to Opening of Ontario, and EMCPA education and police 
response. 

Safeguard Ontario: Not completed due to COVID 
Lock It or Lose It: Not completed due to COVID 

Detachment Emergency Planning Activities 
Emergency Planning 
Activities Elgin County EOC virtual meetings. 

Continuity Of 
Operations Plan 
Status 

COOP  Planning ongoing. 

Detachment: 6P - ELGIN COUNTY 
Location code(s): 6P01 - ELGIN COUNTY (Elgin Group (MI))

Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
Butler, Michael Aug 6, 2021 2:00:06 PM 

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300 



0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140

Fatal Personal
Injury

Property
Damage

2020 2021

In
ci

de
nt

s

Police Services Board Report for The Elgin Group Police Services Board
Collision Reporting System

April to June - 2021 

Motor Vehicle Collisions by Type 

Incidents April to June Year to Date - June 
2020 2021 % 2020 2021 % 

Change Change 
Fatal 3 1 -66.7% 5 1 -80.0% 
Personal Injury 23 31 34.8% 57 55 -3.5% 
Property Damage 126 137 8.7% 272 332 22.1% 
Total 152 169 11.2% 334 388 16.2% 

Fatalities in Detachment Area 
Incidents April to June Year to Date - June 

2020 2021 % Change 2020 2021 % Change 
Motor Vehicle Collision Fatal Incidents 3 1 -66.7% 4 1 -75.0% 

Alcohol Related 1 0 -100.0% 1 0 -100.0% 
Off-Road Vehicle Fatal Incidents 0 0 -- 0 0 --

Alcohol Related 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Motorized Snow Vehicle Fatal Incidents 0 0 -- 1 0 -100.0% 

Alcohol Related 0 0 -- 1 0 -100.0% 

Persons Killed April to June Year to Date - June 
2020 2021 % Change 2020 2021 % Change 

Motor Vehicle Collision 3 1 -66.7% 4 1 -75.0% 
Off-Road Vehicle 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Motorized Snow Vehicle 0 0 -- 1 0 -100.0% 

Detachment: 6P - ELGIN COUNTY 
Location code(s): 6P00-ELGIN COUNTY, 6P01-ELGIN COUNTY (Elgin Group (MI)), 6P10-DUTTON 
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/08/05 Butler, Michael Aug 6, 2021 3:03:22 PM 

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300 



Police Services Board Report for The Elgin Group Police Services Board
Collision Reporting System

April to June - 2021 

Primary Causal Factors in Fatal Motor Vehicle Collisions 
Incidents April to June Year to Date - June 

0

1

Sp
ee

din
g

Alc
oh

ol

Wildl
ife

Ina
tte

nti
ve 

Dr...

2020 2021

In
ci

de
nt

s

2020 2021 % 
Change 

2020 2021 % 
Change 

Speeding as a 
contributing factor 

1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00% 

Where alcohol is 
involved 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Wildlife as a 
contributing factor 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Inattentive driver as a 
contributing factor 

1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00% 

Persons Killed April to June Year to Date - June 
2020 2021 % 

Change 
2020 2021 % 

Change 
Seatbelt as a 
contributing factor 

0 1 0 0 1 0 

Data Utilized 
-
SQL
online
application
reporting
system
–
OPP
CRS
2.3.09
 
- Collision Reporting System Business Intelligence Cube 

Detachment: 6P - ELGIN COUNTY 
Location code(s): 6P00-ELGIN COUNTY, 6P01-ELGIN COUNTY (Elgin Group (MI)), 6P10-DUTTON 
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/08/05 Butler, Michael Aug 6, 2021 3:03:22 PM 

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300 



Police Services Board Report for The Elgin Group Police Services Board
Records Management System

April to June - 2021 

Violent Crime 
Actual April to June Year to Date - June 

2020 2021 % 
Change 

2020 2021 % 
Change 

Murder 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Other Offences Causing 
Death 

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Attempted Murder 1 0 -100.0% 1 0 -100.0% 
Sexual Assault 6 10 66.7% 18 15 -16.7% 
Assault 42 42 0.0% 78 68 -12.8% 
Abduction 1 1 0.0% 2 1 -50.0% 
Robbery 0 0 -- 0 1 --
Other Crimes Against a 
Person 

11 14 27.3% 25 26 4.0% 

Total 61 67 9.8% 124 111 -10.5% 

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45

Att
em

pte
d M

u..
.

Se
xu

al 
As

sau
...

As
sau

lt

Ab
du

ctio
n

Othe
r C

rim
es.

..

2020 2021

Ac
tu

al

Property Crime 
Actual April to June Year to Date - June 

2020 2021 % 
Change 

2020 2021 % 
Change 

Arson 0 0 -- 0 0 --
Break & Enter 23 21 -8.7% 39 38 -2.6% 
Theft Over 20 19 -5.0% 36 37 2.8% 
Theft Under 46 41 -10.9% 82 68 -17.1% 
Have Stolen Goods 2 6 200.0% 5 10 100.0% 
Fraud 34 27 -20.6% 76 62 -18.4% 
Mischief 37 40 8.1% 57 58 1.8% 
Total 162 154 -4.9% 295 273 -7.5% 

0
10
20
30
40
50

Bre
ak 

& En
te.

..

Th
eft

 Over

Th
eft

 Un
de

r

Have
 St

ole
n .

..
Fra

ud

Misc
hie

f

2020 2021

Ac
tu

al

Drug Crime 
Actual April to June Year to Date - June 

2020 2021 % 
Change 

2020 2021 % 
Change 

Possession 4 0 -100.0% 5 3 -40.0% 
Trafficking 0 3 -- 0 5 --
Importation and 
Production 

0 0 -- 0 0 --

Total 4 3 -25.0% 5 8 60.0% 

0

1

2
3

4

Possession Trafficking
2020 2021

Ac
tu

al

Clearance Rate 

Detachment: 6P - ELGIN COUNTY 
Location code(s): 6P00 - ELGIN COUNTY, 6P01 - ELGIN COUNTY (Elgin Group (MI)) (Inactive), 6P10 - DUTTON 
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/07/31 Butler, Michael Aug 6, 2021 2:58:13 PM 

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300 



Police Services Board Report for The Elgin Group Police Services Board
Records Management System

April to June - 2021 

Clearance Rate April to June Year to Date - June 

2020 2021 Difference 2020 2021 Difference 

Violent Crime 63.9% 64.2% 0.3% 64.5% 62.2% -2.4% 

Property Crime 16.0% 14.9% -1.1% 15.9% 18.0% 2.0% 

Drug Crime 100.0% 66.7% -33.3% 100.0% 75.0% -25.0% 

Total (Violent, 
Property & Drug) 

33.9% 34.4% 0.6% 35.0% 34.5% -0.5% 

0%
20%
40%
60%
80%

100%

Violent
Crim...

Property
Cri...

Drug
Crime

Total
(Viole...

2020 2021

Criminal Record and Vulnerable Sector Screening Checks 
Actual April to June Year to Date - June 

2020 2021 % 
Change 

2020 2021 % 
Change 

Criminal Record Checks 11 99 800.0% 115 171 48.7% 
Vulnerable Sector 
Screening Checks 

75 255 240.0% 415 495 19.3% 
0 80 160 240 320

Criminal
Record ...
Vulnerable
Secto...

2020 2021

Data contained within this report is dynamic in nature and numbers will change over time as the Ontario Provincial Police 
continue
to
investigate
and
solve
crime.

Data Utilized 
-
Major
Crimes
 
- Niche RMS All Offence Level Business Intelligence Cube 

Detachment: 6P - ELGIN COUNTY 
Location code(s): 6P00 - ELGIN COUNTY, 6P01 - ELGIN COUNTY (Elgin Group (MI)) (Inactive), 6P10 - DUTTON 
Data source date:  Report Generated by: Report Generated on: 
2021/07/31 Butler, Michael Aug 6, 2021 2:58:13 PM 

PP–CSC–Operational Planning-4300 



Zone 6
Notice of Meeting

SEPTEMBER 28, 2021
2:00 p.m.

Virtual
Connection details and agenda to be distributed


	040 - Board Compensation Review.pdf
	RECOMMENDATION:
	INTRODUCTION:
	DISCUSSION:
	CONCLUSION:

	030 - OAPSB Spring Conference Summary Report.pdf
	REPORT TO THE ELGIN GROUP POLICE SERVICES BOARD




